RUSSIAN ICONS NOW DISPLAYED
IN FLORENCE'S

PiTTI PALACE

B By Lucy GORDAN

Tke Schmidt, the German director of the Uffizi Galleries, an-

nounced in Moscow al the very beginming of September thart

the new year will bring big changes to the Palazzo Pia. the
de Medici dynasty’s former residence. For the first lime ever, 78
Russian icons, the world’s largest collection outside Russia. will go
on permanent display in four 17th-century [rescoed rooms on the
Museum’s ground floor, never opened to the public before. They
will he included in the ticket price, thus allowing visilors o s
cover the hile-known connection belween Florence's past rulers
and the Fastem Onhodox Church.

Maost of the icons date o the sccond guarter of the [8th cen-
tury. bul when aml why they came o he in Ttaly remains a mys-
tery. Scholars have theorized
that they may have been @ gifi
for the Grand Duke trom an
ambussador vr, more likely, a
thank-you present to Francis 1
(1708-65). Holy Roman Em
peror and Duke of Tuscany.
who with his wile Mana
Theresa founded the Haps-
burg-Lorraine dynasty, [rom
the Onthodox community in
Livorno for his approval of the
construction  there of  the
(ireek Orthodox Church of the
Blessed Tranity, This church
was bhuilt between 1757 und
1760, nearly destroyed by
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e of e four rooms being cpened for Bussan ioons” displays.
Here, llwe two paneis of the Manaloguan; nghe, Septoember 10 February,
and, Inf, March 1o August

bombs during World War [1. but reconsecrated in 1957,

What is known is that the iwons were preseat in Florence in
1761. though a permancat home for them was only found now,
Starting in 1796, for only a few years they were stored in the [/
before the majority of them were moved to the Medici Villa di
Castello with its magnilicent gardens and grounds where they re-
mained until the beginning of the 20th cenmury, then to the Accad
emia from 1958-1968, then w the Palazzo Pirti, buck w the Ae-
cademia from 1984 10 2013, and then in 2014 to the Uffiz where
they were displayed during the Chnistmas holidays.

The collection has two stars, which will remain ar the Uizl be-
cause of their importance. One is the two pancls of the Menalogion,
or the clemar of the Orthodox
religious festivities divided into
Iwi semesters: from September
to February and from March 10
August, Each pancl has twenty
harizontal rows of sucred scenes
and of saints, each identificd
with an inseription. The other is
the 1con of Saint Catherine of
Alexandria, darable to 1693-94
thunks to the stamp in s gilded
silver oklad (the metal protective
cusing which covers some pars
of cons), The press release tells
us that “thc martyr-princess is
portrayed with attributes very
similar 1o those in Western art:



the pulm, books, amd an armullary sphere, all of
which allude 10 her vast knowledge. This work
ol art is attributed to the workshop in the Krem

lin’s Armory. It is believed 10 be m the style of
Kirill Ulanov, une of the well-known masters of
this workshop at the end of the 17th and hegin-
ning of the [8th centuries.

“wroness of lawyers, librarians, millers,
nurses, philosophers, rope makers, secretaries,
school girls, spinsters, students, wheelwrights.
and universirics and 1nvoked against Jiseuses of
the tongue. St. Catherine of Alexundria is onc of
the most popular saints of Christendom. She was
an Egyptian peincess ur queen. “who, despite her
areat heauty,” Suinrs Preserve Us! by Sean Kel-
ly and Rosemary Rogers reports, “preferred the
study of philosophy Lo the prospect of marriage
10 the Roman Emperor Maxentius. Inspired by a
visit by the Blessed Virgin. a desert hermat
sought her out. and showed Catherine a picture
of the Mixkonna and Child. Immediately she not
only became a Christim, bul ‘mysgically misr
ricd” the Christ Child (He's said 10 have given
her a ning). Appalled, Maxentius summoned a
team of fifty pagan philosophers o debate reli-
gion with her. She not oaly confounded them in
argument, it converted them 10 the 1aith. The
Lmperor had them all slaughtered, but spared
Catherine, aller whom he conlinued to Tust. Re-
buffed once muore, he ordered her chaste body
strelched out on a spiked wheel, the infamous
“Catherine wheel”" Before her torture could be-
gin, lightening-wielding angels appeared and
shantered the device. causing its blades o hack
up bystanders. She was then behcaded, but milk,
not blood, flowed from her holy neck. The an-
gels transported her body to the muonastery of
Saint Catherin below Mount Sinai”

Only one of the 1cons in the iz collection
has o delinite painter, Vasilyy Grjazaov. He
signed the iwon of the Madonna and Child of
Tichvin. duted July 16, 1728, 1Cs a replica of the
miraculous image, which sccording 1o tradition.
uppeared to fishermen on Lake Ladoga in 1383
at Tichvin near Novgorod. The ion was hover-
ing over the lake’s wilers amidst a eadiant light,
The websile www.oca.org reports: “According to
an curly 16th century Russian manuscripl, The
Tade of Miracles of the Teon of e Tikhvin Moth-
¢er of God. the Theolokos [the title of Mary,
mother of Jesus, used especially in Eastern
Chnistianity| heesell decided that her smage
should leave Constantinople, perhaps in anrici-
pation of the impending fall of the Byzantine
Frnpire.”

Shoaly afler its miraculous appearance. the
iwon was discovered in several neighboring

From fop to bottom:

St. Catherine of Alexandria, Vasilj
Graznov's Molher of God of Tichwn,
Mother af God in the styk: knawn as
1 you every creaturne repoices” and
St John the Buptist Bowng Beheaded

towns, including the village of Motchenitsy on
the bank of the Tikhvinka River, before it final
Iy appeared near the town of Tikhvin™ On
Gnuznov's icon the date is inseribed acoonding
t the Western system introduced in Russia by
Tsar Peter the Greut (1672-1725) along with
Arabic numbers and the Julian calendar. replac-
ing the Byzantine calendar used up 1o then,

The oldest icons to go on display will be one
portruying the Mother of God in the siyle known
as “in you every creature rejoices.” and another,
The Beheading of St. John the Raptist. These
two jcons arrived in Florence before the Honse
of Lomaine started to rule the Grand Duchy of
Tuscany beginning in 1737 when the last de-
scendant of the Medici family, Gian Gaslone,
died without heirs. We know that. already in
1639, during, the reign of Fenlinand 1 and his
wile Vitloria della Rovere, the icons were part of
the litaegical objects conserved in the “Chapel
of the Relics™ in the Pitt Palace.

Speaking of chapels, Schmidt also an-
nounced the daily vpening. starting in Decen
ber. of the Palatine Chapel, adjacent to the
wons” new rooms. Until now. the chapel has
rarely been open to the public. suve for special
occasions. The Uiz website rells us: “Built by
Bartoloneo Ammannati in the 15005 on the
ground tloor of the Pitti Place, formerly a draw-
ing room, il became 3 Bridal Chamber., frescoed
in 1661 by Jacopo Chiavistelli (1618 or 1621-
1698) un the occasion of Grand Duke Cosimo
1 dei” Medici's wedding. In 1765 it was wurned
by Grand Duke Peter Teopold of Hapsbura-Lor-
rainc into the new and sumptuous chapel of his
courl, thus rudically iransforming the original
premises. Choir stalls and upper balconies were
then realized along with the large arch window.
[The Florentine painter] Vincenzo Meuvcci
(1694-1766) was charged to tum the original
freseo by Chiavistelli from a profane 10 a sacred
subject only with a few brush-ups! The alear was
realized in 1785, Its two gorgeous Liles were 1n-
laid with semiprecious stones and framed hy
marvelous white marble and gall bronze. Some
30 years later, Grund Duke Ferdinand TIT com
missioned Neoclassic painter Luigi Ademollo
(1764-1849) 10 redecorare the vault and the
wills with spectacular lrescoes of the Crucifix-
ion and Palm Sunday.

Lpilogue: A plaque on a building opposite
the Pitti Palace (Piazza Pitii 22) explains how
the great Russian novelist Fyodor Dostoyevsky,
poverty-sincken, homesick, and epileptic. com-
pleted his masterpiece The Jdior while living
there with his newly wed second wifc Anna for
ninc months helween 1868-9.0
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